Foothill Transit

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING

West Covina, CA
Friday, October 24, 2025

— j/\‘\/




Foothill Transit
MISSION

To be the premier public transit
provider committed to:

A

SAFETY
COURTESY
QUALITY
RESPONSIVENESS
EFFICIENCY
INNOVATION

Foothill Transit

SAFETY

We educate, encourage, and endorse a strong
culture of safety at all levels of the organization,
valuing the responsibility entrusted in us by the
communities that we serve.

RESULTS

We value the achievement of organizational goals
and initiatives as defined in our business plan and
involving all levels of the organization.

INTEGRITY

We are committed to high ethical standards based
on accountability, honesty, respect, transparency,
and a high level of fiscal responsibility.

GRATITUDE

We are a team united in thankfulness for each
other; we express gratitude for our many
opportunities by investing our time and energy in
our community and industry, and through the open
expression of appreciation.

EMBRACIVE

We are committed to creating a culture that
enthusiastically embraces and supports the active
participation of all team members, valuing the
unigue perspectives and life experiences that
everyone brings.

TEAM MEMBERS

Our team members are the key to Foothill
Transit’s success and we are committed to
supporting them through education,
development, and recognition.

COMMUNICATION

We value and are committed to open honest
respectful discussion which is responsive,
informative, and constructive.

SUSTAINABILITY

We embrace sustainability because it benefits all
aspects of our business while helping our
communities by protecting the environment
through measured and responsible stewardship of
resources.

Foothill Transit



Foothill Transit

If you require translation services, please contact the Chief Executive Officer’s office at (626) 931-7300
extension 7204, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.

Si necesita servicios de traduccion, comuniquese con la oficina del Director Ejecutivo llamando al (626)
931-7300, extension 7204, al menos 48 horas antes de la reunion.

EREUERS ZEA 2D B/ BEENTRIAZ (626 ) 931-7300 11 7204

Néu quy vi yéu cau dich vu dich thudt, vui long lién h¢ v6i van phong Giam Ddc Piéu Hanh theo s6 (626) 931-7300, s6 may 16
7204, it nhat 48 gi¢ trudc cude hop

Kung kailangan mo ng serbisyong pagsasalin, mangyaring makipag-ugnayan sa tanggapan ng Punong
Ehekutibong Opisyal sa numerong (626) 931-7300 ekstensyon 7204, hindi bababa ng 48 oras bago ang
pagpupulong

Ol MH| AT LS AR 397 A|ZHE| 7| XA 48 A|ZH FOf| (626) 931-7300 LM 7204 Ho =z
ENFGRAO| HESHY AR

BER/BERY-EANRELRRRE, S-T1V V7T 48 BREIBIETIC. CEO/RE R EETE EHEAETIOER LTS, CEO E
ISPmELRSE ¢ (626) 931-7300 NER 7204

W oles (626) 931-7300 s (626) 931-7300 5 oylas 45 Jols ke 65 b dodir 3,8 31 B casls 48 S s Tabad el 35 doomys ok 4 S|

Bpt 2tq pupgduiiswljut Swpwynipniubp Bt hwpjuynp, hwinhwynidhg wntuq 48 dud wnwy quiquhwnptp
Qquwnp gnpswnhp wbopkih gpuubiyul (626) 931-7300 pugnighs 7204 hkpwimuwhwdwpni:

wasiinmgAEimIoNsgURTUMAan g sImM I SiwsMAMIUSUSMuEgIainuue (626) 931-7300
WUBMUUS 7204, 12U SIWINUINESAG 48 iH¥gSAGIUR

glaia¥) e B8V e delu 48 Ji ellis (7204 L2131 &) (626) 931-7300 —ilell a5 e sl Gl iSas Juai¥) o s can il cilardl dalall Al 3
mnAdasnsusMsanu Tusadasodninnulszssnulhmiiniiusmsii (626) 931-7300 sie 7204 atiuiies 48 whlusnaumsuszam

o

@ o 0 C "] < o co Conlo 48 o oC
CDCOD@ jopslevs] ? O?GSCD L(ﬂ') ('Yf C\?G’BOO m 3’2@803260080)0)08 3’2?80&30 ?96139C\Bg

@Q?osaﬁesmcgaspﬂguoﬂol L%.fd]ooc (626) 931-7300 C\%ézg 7204 o%om(rsog(ﬁeo:(ﬂn

MRBEEZIZRT - B2V EZEFIRAET 48 /\F#EEFT(626) 931-7300 # 7204 - HEBEHEHITE
WAE -

el 48 Jilas- laked cangls ez 5 lass £ capg o B
(626) ad Bayyd Jale jaa fdo betids o8 51 LB
ol wlhad 4 7204 | JSs paed 9 931-7300



) Foothill Transit

i Los 48 __!.iI_I:—I.;'_In-_. cdag- 0 =lads- d__':|=-.'| e

512 [526) 931-7300 mlad Ripde Hails 3 LS
oy olad ol pae FB2 L 7204

Ina pono e loa“‘a ia ‘oe kekahi kdkua ‘unuhi “‘olelo ‘&, ‘olu‘olu e ka“‘a ‘ike aku me ka Pouhana ma
(626) 931-7300 ma ka laina 7204, e kelepona au ho ‘i ma kahi o0 48 mau hola ma mua o ka hui pG ‘ana
aku me lakou.

PR AMUH Ialg el I axgwdr g, d FUAT 9% ¥ HH § FH 48 US Ugd, HSI FIRUES AUFEN &
P B 9% (626) 931-7300 TawesH 7204 R W H|

No kasapulam ti serbisio ti panagipatarus, maidawat nga kontakem ti opisina ti Chief Executive Officer iti
(626) 931-7300 extension 7204, di kumurang a 48 nga oras sakbay ti miting

coc C c o C (9} OC o oC C o R N, C °o. . C
?Q?K\DPUJP U)'IO’)O)'I'L@'L(D'I'LO')(DPC\)'I U)'I(YJU)'LO'{P(X)ZIBO'I?P, OODJR'L&)OO'{I'IUJP ()'I&J)'IS?JYO)'I

63185 :2013% & (626) 931-7300 303885013 7204, 20100001 48 $5&5

IL
€ 2C QC 9

oOCoC (¢} C
0D][s02100PAITIPIDAIMeHPOIOR1.
TUICEIE9NILOSNIVECVWITI, GOATBINIVTOLVIEOSMIVKCS (626) 931-7300 v 7204 €99

vvoe 48 §oiugﬁavmbuzan.

MEEREEEHE, FElxmail
TTIEE a8 JETIETT(626) 031-7300 FF
7204, EEEFEFROTEDOE,

Afai ete manaomia ni auaunaga faaliliu, faamolemole faafesoota’i le ofisa o le Pule Sili i le (626) 931-
7300 extension 7204, a itiiti mai i le 48 itula a’o le’i faia le fono.

TercUme hizmetine ihtiyaciniz varsa, lUtfen toplantidan en az 48 saat 6nce (626) 931-7300 dahili 7204
numarall telefondan icra Kurulu Baskaninin ofisiyle irtibata gecin.

Agar siz tarjima xizmatlariga ehtiyoj sezsangiz, uchrashuvdan kamida 48 soat oldin (626) 931-7300
ragamining 7204 kengaytmasi orqgali Markaziy Boshqgaruv Ofisiga murojaat qiling.



g

Foothill Transit AGENDA

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING

8:00 AM, OCTOBER 24, 2025
Foothill Transit Administrative Office
2" Floor Board Room

100 South Vincent Avenue

West Covina, CA 91790

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL

3. CONFIRMATION OF AGENDA BY CHAIR AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

4. PRESENTATIONS
4. Introduction of Foothill Transit Business Partners

S. PUBLIC COMMENT

Public Comment: Any individual may request to address the Executive Board at this time. Public
comments are allowed only during the Public Comment portion of the agenda. Speakers may speak only
once for up to 2 minutes total time during which they may address both on- and off- agenda items. If
there are any public hearings scheduled, individuals will be given an additional opportunity to comment
under said items. Speakers are not permitted to yield their time to another speaker. Note: ACTION MAY
BE TAKEN ON ANY ITEM IDENTIFIED ON THE AGENDA.

The public may view and obtain all written information supporting this agenda provided to the board
both initially and supplementary prior to the meeting by calling (626) 931-7300 extension 7204, emailing
board.secretary@foothilltransit.org, or at the agency’s offices located at 100 S. Vincent Ave., Suite 200,
West Covina, CA 91790. Documents, including PowerPoint handouts, distributed to Board Members by
staff or Board Members at the meeting will simultaneously be made available to the public upon request.

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, if you require a disability-related
modification or accommodation to attend or participate in this meeting, including auxiliary aids or
services, please contact the Chief Executive Officer’s office at (626) 931-7300 extension 7204, at least
48 hours prior to the meeting.



Foothill Transit AGENDA

8:00 AM, October 24, 2025
2" Floor Board Room, 100 South Vincent Avenue, West Covina, CA 91790
Page 2

CONSENT CALENDAR: Items 6 through 9 are consent items which may be received

and filed and/or approved by the board in a single motion. If any member of the
Executive Board wishes to discuss a consent item, please request that the item be
pulled for further discussion and potential action.

6.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF AUGUST 29, 2025

OCTOBER 2025 PROCUREMENT MONTHLY REPORT

Recommended Action: Receive and file the Procurement Monthly Report for October 2025.

RESOLUTION ADOPTING EXECUTIVE BOARD AND GOVERNING BOARD
MEETING SCHEDULE FOR 2026

Recommended Action: Adopt Resolution No. 2025-04, the Executive and Governing Board
Meeting Schedule for 2026.

AMENDMENT TO CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

Recommended Action: Authorize the Executive Board Chair to execute the Second Amendment
to the First Amended and Restated Chief Executive Officer Employment Agreement dated July 1,
2023.

REGULAR AGENDA:

10.

11.

12.

13.

U.S. TARIFF IMPACTS AND BUS FUNDING UPDATES

Recommended Action: Receive and file the U.S. Tariff Impacts and Bus Purchase Funding
Updates report.

LOS ANGELES METRO TRANSIT CENTER PERMITS

Recommended Action: Receive and file the Los Angeles Metro (LA Metro) Transit Center Permits
Report.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER COMMENT

BOARD MEMBER COMMENT



Foothill Transit AGENDA

8:00 AM, October 24, 2025
2nd Floor Board Room, 100 South Vincent Avenue, West Covina, CA 91790
Page 3

14. CLOSED SESSION: CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS
(Government Code § 54956.8)

Property Address/Location: APN: 8265-004-041

Agency Negotiator(s): Doran J. Barnes, Darold D. Pieper, LaShawn King Gillespie,
Sharlane Bailey

Negotiating Parties: Puente Hills Land Venture

Under Negotiation: Price and Terms

15. CLOSED SESSION REPORT

16.  ADJOURNMENT

The next Regular Meeting of the Executive Board
is scheduled for
Friday, December 12, 2025, at 8:30 a.m.



STATEMENT OF PROCEEDINGS FOR THE
REGULAR MEETING OF THE
FOOTHILL TRANSIT EXECUTIVE BOARD

FOOTHILL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE
] ) 2NP FLOOR BOARD ROOM
Foothill Transit 100 S. VINCENT AVENUE

WEST COVINA, CALIFORNIA 91790

Friday, August 29, 2025
8:00 a.m.

DRAFT

1. CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order by Chair Shevlin at 8:06 a.m.
2. ROLL CALL

Roll call was taken by Christina Lopez, Board Secretary.

Present: Member Edward Alvarez, Member Corey Calaycay, Member Cory
Moss, Vice Chair Cynthia Sternquist, Chair Becky Shevlin

Chair Shevlin recessed the meeting at 8:06 a.m.
Chair Shevlin reconvened the meeting at 9:48 a.m.
3. CONFIRMATION OF AGENDA BY CHAIR AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

After discussion, by Common Consent, the Chair and Chief Executive Officer
confirmed the agenda as presented.

4. PRESENTATIONS
4.1. Introduction of Foothill Transit Business Partners
There were no presentations by Foothill Transit business partners.
5. PUBLIC COMMENT

Armando Herman addressed the Foothill Transit Executive Board.

Agenda Item No. 6



Draft Statement of Proceedings August 29, 2025
Foothill Transit Page 2 of 5

CONSENT CALENDAR

The Executive Board took action on a single motion on items 6-10.
6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR THE SPECIAL MEETING OF AUGUST 1, 2025

Motion by Member Calaycay, second by Member Moss, to approve. Motion
carried 5-0.

7. AUGUST 2025 PROCUREMENT MONTHLY REPORT

Recommendation: Receive and file the Procurement Monthly Report for
August 2025.

The Executive Board received and filed the Procurement Monthly Report for
August 2025.

8. AUTHORIZATION TO ISSUE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) FOR
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE OF CNG FUELING STATIONS

Recommendation: Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to issue a Request
for Proposals for Operations and Maintenance of CNG Fueling Stations at
Pomona and Arcadia Irwindale Operations and Maintenance Fueling Stations.

Motion by Member Calaycay, second by Member Moss, to approve. Motion
carried 5-0.

9. RESOLUTION FOR THE CALIFORNIA STATE OF GOOD REPAIR PROGRAM
Recommendation: Adopt the following resolution: Resolution No. 2025-03:
Authorization for the Execution of the Certifications and Assurances for the

California State of Good Repair Program (Attachment A).

Motion by Member Calaycay, second by Member Moss, to adopt. Motion
carried 5-0.

10. FOOTHILL TRANSIT INVESTMENT POLICY UPDATE

Recommendation: Adopt the update to the Foothill Transit Investment
Policy.

Motion by Member Calaycay, second by Member Moss, to adopt. Motion
carried 5-0.

Agenda Item No. 6



Draft Statement of Proceedings August 29, 2025

Foothill Transit Page 3 of 5

REGULAR AGENDA

11.

12.

AUTHORIZATION TO ISSUE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR ELECTRIC
BUS CHARGING STATION UPGRADES

Recommendation: Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to issue a Request
for Proposal for Electric Bus Charging Station Upgrades.

Roland Cordero, Director of Maintenance and Vehicle Technology, presented
this item.

Mr. Cordero reported that in order to provide a range of up to 300 miles on
a single charge for the 24 Alexander Dennis double-deck buses being
purchased requires direct current chargers. The Procurement is a two-phase
process that starts with a Request for Qualifications to determine a pool of
qualified candidates that can then participate to in the Request for
Proposals. Award of a contract is anticipated in early 2026.

Motion by Member Moss, second by Vice Chair Sternquist, to approve.
Motion carried 5-0.

FISCAL YEAR 2025 FOURTH QUARTER BUDGET UPDATE

Recommendation: Receive and file the Fiscal Year 2025 Fourth Quarter
Budget Update.

Jorge Quintana, Budget and Grants Manager, presented this item.

Mr. Quintana reported that Foothill Transit is $11.5 million under the
approved $160.8 million operating budget. Capital expenditures for the fiscal
year were $14.1 million. Most of the capital expenditures were related to the
continuation of the bus heavy maintenance program, facility upgrades and
improvements, and IT related investments essential to transit operations.
Due to the success of strategic service improvements recommended by
Foothill Transit Forward and increased ridership from the Cal Poly Pomona
Class Pass Program, Foothill Transit surpassed the $8.8 million fare revenue
target and has collected $9.5 million in fare revenues.

The Executive Board received and filed the Fiscal Year 2025 Fourth Quarter
Budget update presentation.

Agenda Item No. 6



Draft Statement of Proceedings August 29, 2025

Foothill Transit Page 4 of 5

13.

14.

15.

FISCAL YEAR 2025 PERFORMANCE INDICATORS REPORT

Recommendation: Receive and file the Fiscal Year 2025 Performance
Indicators Report.

Ali Showkatian, Director of Customer Service and Operations, presented this
item.

Mr. Showkatian reported that Foothill Transit achieved seven out of eight
key performance indicator targets. Targets met included Schedule
Adherence, Miles between technical Roadcalls, Customer Complaints per
100,000 Boardings, Boardings per Vehicle Service Hour, Average Weekday
Boardings, Farebox Recovery Ratio, and Average Cost per Vehicle Service
Hour. The key performance indicator target not met was Preventable
Collisions.

Staff responded to questions from the Executive Board. The Executive Board
received and filed the Fiscal Year 2025 Performance Indicators presentation.

FISCAL YEAR 2025 AND 2026 BUSINESS PLAN INITIATIVES UPDATE

Recommendation: Receive and file an update on Foothill Transit’s FY2025
and 2026 Business Plan Initiatives.

LaShawn King Gillespie, Deputy Chief Executive Officer, presented this item.

Ms. Gillespie provided updates on the key projects included in Foothill
Transit’s current business plan. Initiatives include: Fuel Cell Bus and
Infrastructure Expansion, Zero Emissions Double-Deck Fleet Expansion and
Charging Infrastructure, Enhanced State Advocacy Presence, Pomona
Operations and Maintenance Facility CNG Equipment Upgrade,
Administrative Office Solar Project, Safety and Security Presence
Coordination, Cal Poly Pomona Branco Mobility Hub, and Commuter Express
Service Efficiency Project.

The Executive Board received and filed Foothill Transit FY2025 and FY2026
Business Plan Initiatives presentation.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER COMMENT
Comments by Mr. Doran J. Barnes, Chief Executive Officer, Foothill Transit.

The were no comments by Mr. Doran J. Barnes, Chief Executive Officer.

Agenda Item No. 6



Draft Statement of Proceedings August 29, 2025

Foothill Transit Page 5 of 5

16.

17.

18.

19.

BOARD MEMBER COMMENT
Comments by Members of the Foothill Transit Executive Board.

) Member Moss announced that the 2028 LA Olympics mountain biking
event will be held at the Pacific Palms in the City of Industry. She also
indicated that there are discussions to use the Industry Hills Expo
Center as a parking location.

CLOSED SESSION: PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
(Gov’t Code & 54957)
Title: Chief Executive Officer

The Executive Board recessed in to Closed Session at 10:41 p.m.
CLOSED SESSION REPORT
The Executive Board reconvened at 11:47 a.m.

Darold Pieper, General Counsel, reported that the Executive Board voted on
the motion of Member Alvarez and second by Member Calaycay to
unanimously approve a three percent increase in salary for the Chief
Executive Officer, and directed that a report be brought back to the next
Executive Board Meeting on the consent calendar for final approval.

ADJOURNMENT

Adjournment for the August 29, 2025, Foothill Transit Executive Board
Meeting.

There being no further business, the Foothill Transit Executive Board
meeting adjourned at 11:48 a.m.

Agenda Item No. 6



Foothill Transit

October 24, 2025

To: Executive Board

Subject: October 2025 Procurement Monthly Report

Recommendation
Receive and file the Procurement Monthly Report for October 2025.

Awarded Procurements:

Since the previous Procurement Monthly Report for August 2025, there have
been five awards of agreements over $100,000.00 but below the Executive
Board’s approval threshold of $250,000.00.

e Southern Computer Warehouse Inc. was awarded Contract No. 25-052
to replace existing laptops and docking stations that have reached the
end of their useful life duration. The independent cost estimate for the
solicitation was $110,000. The contract is in the amount of $104,759.67
for furnishing all essential computer materials and was awarded to the
lowest cost quotation of the twenty (20) quotes received.

¢ CMAX Commercial Maintenance Inc. was awarded Contract No. 26-004
to provide sweeping and trash removal services to maintain debris-free
conditions at the following parking lot locations: Administrative Building
and DTLA Bus Layover Site. The Independent Cost Estimate for this
work was $122,452.91. The contract was valued at $98,374.32, covering
a two-year term with an additional one-year option. This award was
made to the lowest responsive and responsible respondent of the five
(5) bids received.

e lteris, Inc. was awarded Contract No. 25-128 for any repair and testing
services related to the Colorado/Huntington Transit Signal Priority
(TSP) equipment currently installed along the corridor. The Independent
Cost Estimate for this operation and maintenance project was
$225,000. The contract was awarded for a total amount of $190,307.13
over a three-year period.

e |T Devices Online, Inc. was awarded Contract No. 26-005 for remote
offsite backup cluster to ensure secure data retrieval in the event of a
catastrophic damage to the data center located in the Administrative

Agenda Item No. 7



Foothill Transit
Executive Board Meeting - 10/24/2025
October 2025 Procurement Monthly Report
Page 2

Building as well as meet regulatory requirements for the finance
department. The contract was awarded for a total amount of
$125,477.04, which was below the Manufacturer’s Suggested Retail
Price of $181,529. This award was made to the lowest responsive and
responsible respondent of the seven (7) quotes received.

e Birdi Systems, Inc. was awarded Contract No. 25-112 for on-going
repairs, testing, inspection and software revision of Foothill Transit’s
Electronic Security Systems. The Independent Cost Estimate for this
solicitation was $211,497.85. The contract was awarded for a total
amount of $158,856.00 for base year of service and two option years.
The award was made to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder.

Upcoming Procurements:

Since the previous Procurement Monthly Report for August 2025, the
Procurement Department has initiated one procurement over $100,000.00
but below the Executive Board’s approval threshold of $250,000.00.

e Invitation for Bid No. 25-011 for replacement and upgrades of the fire
pump controller at the Administrative Building. The independent cost
estimate for the project is at $125,000 and is currently in progress for
solicitation issuance.

Sincerely,
Christopher Pieper Doran J. Barnes
Director of Procurement Chief Executive Officer

Agenda Item No. 7



Foothill Transit

October 24, 2025

To: Executive Board

Subject: Resolution Adopting Executive Board and Governing Board
Meeting Schedule for 2026

Recommendation

Adopt Resolution No. 2025-04, the Executive and Governing Board Meeting
Schedule for 2026.

Analysis

The schedule of Executive Board and Governing Board meetings are shown
on the attached meeting schedule (Attachment A). Foothill Transit’s Joint
Powers Agreement (JPA) requires that meetings be fixed by resolution
(Attachment B).

Upon adoption, the resolution and meeting schedule will be filed with the JPA
member cities and Los Angeles County.

Due to business issues that may arise, it may be necessary to modify the
meeting schedule. Notification will be provided in a timely manner of any
possible date or time changes and proper notifications will be posted.

Sincerely,

Christina Lopez Doran J. Barnes

Board Secretary Chief Executive Officer
Attachments

Agenda Item No. 8



Attachment A

Draft

2026 Executive Board & Governing Board Meeting Schedule

January 2026

Friday, January 30 at 8:00 a.m. - Governing Board Meeting
Friday, January 30 at 8:00 a.m. - Executive Board Meeting

February 2026

Friday, February 27 at 8:00 a.m. - 3:00 p.m. - Strategic Planning
Session, Location TBD

March 2026 Friday, March 27 at 8:00 a.m. - Governing Board Meeting
Friday, March 27 at 8:00 a.m. - Executive Board Meeting
April 2026 Friday, April 24 at 8:00 a.m. - Executive Board Meeting
May 2026 Friday, May 29 at 8:00 a.m. - Annual Governing Board Meeting
Friday, May 29 at 8:00 a.m. - Executive Board Meeting
June 2026 Friday, June 26 at 8:00 a.m. - Executive Board Meeting
July 2026 No meetings scheduled in July

August 2026

Friday, August 28 at 8:00 a.m. - Governing Board Meeting
Friday, August 28 at 8:00 a.m. - Executive Board Meeting

September 2026

Friday, September 25 at 8:00 a.m. - Executive Board Meeting

October 2026

Friday, October 23 at 8:00 a.m. - Governing Board Meeting
Friday, October 23 at 8:00 a.m. - Executive Board Meeting

November 2026

No meetings scheduled in November

December 2026

Friday, December 11 at 8:30 a.m. - Executive Board Meeting

Adopted:




Attachment B

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-04

A RESOLUTION OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD OF
FOOTHILL TRANSIT ADOPTING THE 2026 MEETING
SCHEDULE

The Executive Board of Foothill Transit does resolve as follows:
1. Findings. The Executive Board hereby finds and declares the following:

A. The Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement governing Foothill Transit
requires that the dates of the regular meetings of the Governing Board and
Executive Board fixed by resolution.

B. [t is most convenient and useful to the agency and its members to
fix the dates of the regular meetings and of other significant meetings through
the adoption of an annual schedule.

2. Action.

A. The Executive Board adopts the 2026 Executive Board and
Governing Board Meeting Schedule attached as Attachment A.

3. Adoption. PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the
Executive Board held on October 24, 2025, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
BECKY A. SHEVLIN, CHAIR
APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST:
DAROLD PIEPER, GENERAL COUNSEL CHRISTINA LOPEZ, BOARD SECRETARY

By: By:




Foothill Transit

October 24, 2025

To: Executive Board

Subject: Amendment to Chief Executive Officer’s Employment
Agreement

Recommendation

Authorize the Executive Board Chair to execute the Second Amendment to
the First Amended and Restated Chief Executive Officer Employment
Agreement dated July 1, 2023.

Analysis

On August 29, 2025, the Executive Board met in Closed Session to evaluate
the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQO”). It thereafter publicly reported that it had
authorized a three percent increase in the CEO’s compensation effective July
1, 2025, consistent with its treatment of the agency’s other employees. It
further directed that a Second Amendment to the CEO’s Employment
Agreement implementing this increase be placed on the Consent Calendar at
the next Executive Board Meeting.

Budget Impact

Funds have been programmed in the Fiscal Year 2025-2026 budget to
account for this compensation adjustment.

Sincerely,

Darold Piepe
General Counsel

Agenda Item No. 9



Foothill Transit

October 24, 2025

To: Executive Board

Subject: U.S. Tariff Impacts and Bus Purchase Funding Updates

Recommendation

Receive and file the U.S. Tariff Impacts and Bus Purchase Funding Updates
report.

Analysis

U.S. Tariffs

On September 24, 2025, Foothill Transit received a letter from New Flyer
regarding assessing tariffs on the purchase of 19 fuel cell buses. The steel and
aluminum parts of the bus are mostly targeted by the tariffs.

New Flyer will begin assessing the tariff impact on each bus as they enter the
production line. The first article bus entered production on September 8, and
will be available for inspection by Foothill Transit’s Maintenance Team at New
Flyer’s Anniston, Alabama plant the week of October 27. After inspection and
acceptance of the first article bus, the remaining buses on this order will
enter production this coming November.

The letter (Attachment A) indicated the percentage of tariff assessed will be
between 3 percent to 15 percent of the bus price. The projected maximum 15
percent assessment will increase the contract price from $28,281,849.60 to
$32,417,075.33, a $4,135,225.73 increase for the 19 buses.

However, if a 3 percent tariff is assessed by New Flyer on the 19 buses, the
contract price will increase to $29,042,565.99, a $760,716.49 price increase.

Agenda Item No. 10



Foothill Transit

Executive Board Meeting - 10/24/2025
U.S. Tariff Impacts and Bus Purchase Funding Updates

Page 2
15% Tariff 3% Tariff
1 Total Bus Cost S 26,781,820.33 S 26,781,820.33
2 Tariff S 4,017,273.03 S 803,454.61
S 30,799,093.36 S 27,585,274.94
3 Training Cost S 78,027.30 S 78,027.30
4 Sales Tax S 1,539,954.67 S 1,379,263.75
5 Total Cost with Tariff S 32,417,075.33 S 29,042,565.99

In comparison, a similar procurement of CNG buses including tariffs is
estimated to cost a minimum of $21,529,150 (3% tariff) and up to $24,025,750
(15% tariff).

Alliance for Renewable Clean Energy Systems (ARCHES)

Foothill Transit signed into Phase | of the ARCHES Hydrogen Hub
Subrecipient Agreement in December 2024, for $62 Million of grant funds for
190 fuel cell buses (FCEB), construction of a hydrogen fueling infrastructure
at the Arcadia Irwindale Operations and Maintenance facility, and updates to
the Pomona Operations & Maintenance Facility hydrogen fueling
infrastructure. ARCHES will provide $300,000 of grant funds per FCEB, $4
Million toward the hydrogen fueling infrastructure, and $1 Million to upgrade
the Pomona hydrogen station. Majority of the funding for ARCHES comes
from State of California’s Cap-and-Investment along with financial support
from the Department of Energy (DOE).

Over the last ten months Foothill Transit team members with guidance from
the Center for Transportation and the Environment (CTE) prepared and
submitted required DOE documents and reports to ARCHES.

On October 1, 2025, the DOE notified ARCHES that all work on the hydrogen
hub should stop immediately at close of business. At this time there has been
no indication whether the State of California will discontinue its support for
ARCHES.

Hybrid Zero-Emission Truck and Bus Voucher Incentive Program (HVIP)
Another source of incentive for FCEBs comes in the form of HVIP funding in
the amount of $312,000 per FCEB. Although the program is currently
oversubscribed, the California Air Resources Board advised Foothill Transit

Agenda Item No. 10



Foothill Transit
Executive Board Meeting - 10/24/2025
U.S. Tariff Impacts and Bus Purchase Funding Updates
Page 3

along with New Flyer to submit an application for the purchase of 30 FCEBs
to be included in a wait list. CARB has indicated that $132.1 Million of Hino
Motors settlement money will be used to fund HVIP applicants that are on the
wait list. These funds will be available late 2025.

Budget Impact

Funding source for the 19 buses are: FTA 5307 Funds of $22,640,00 and
Local Match - MOSIP of $5,660,000, or $28,300,000 in total.

Foothill Transit has programmed $39,750,000 of FTA 5307 funds and
$12,700,00 of TIRCP funds, for a total of $52,450,000 towards the purchase
of 30 FCEBS. The contract price for the 30 FCEBS is $50,075,336.86.

Sincerely,

Roland M. Cordero Doran J. Barnes
Director of Maintenance and Vehicle Technology Chief Executive Officer
Attachment

Agenda Item No. 10



9/24/2025 Attachment A

Roland Cordero Director of Maintenance & Vehicle Technology
100 S. Vincent Ave. Suite 200
West Covina CA 91790

Subject: Tariff Surcharge Notification and Tariff Pricing Process — SR-3028
Dear Roland,

At New Flyer, we are committed to delivering reliable, high-quality, and sustainable mobility
solutions while navigating the evolving realities of today’s economic and trade environment.
Recent tariff announcements—particularly those targeting steel and aluminum, the automotive
industry, and broader cross-border trade—have created significant cost pressures across our
supply chain.

To ensure continued production and delivery of our customers’ buses, New Flyer will begin
assessing the tariff impact on each bus build at the time of line entry. We expect the cost of
Tariffs will increase the price of the bus from 3% to 15%. The amount of the price increase will
vary based on the type of bus, agency-selected options, component sourcing, and timing of the
order.

For goods where New Flyer is the importer of record, the financial impact of these tariffs is clear
and immediate. However, for components or materials sourced through multiple tiers of
suppliers, there is often a delay in identifying and quantifying the full cost impact due to the
complexity and timing of data processing within the supply chain.

Tariffs currently in effect and impacting your bus price include:

Effective March 12, 2025:

e 20% tariff on all U.S. imports from China
o 25% tariff on U.S. imports of foreign-made steel and aluminum

o 25% tariff on U.S. imports from Canada or Mexico that do not meet USMCA
qualifications

Effective March 13, 2025:

o 25% tariff on Canadian imports of U.S.-made steel and aluminum

Effective April 5, 2025:

e 10% tariff on all U.S. imports from all countries except China
(Note: Higher proposed tariffs for select countries have been temporarily paused for 90
days)

Effective April 9, 2025:




o 145% tariff on all U.S. imports from China (reflecting a 120% increase)

However, we also want to note that while we are implementing a process to capture direct tariff
impacts, we are operating in a volatile environment and are seeing broader inflation in parts and
materials across the industry. These cost increases, driven by supplier pricing volatility and
market conditions, may not always be isolated as a tariff and could lead to additional price
increases beyond the range provided.

Per the terms of FOOTHILL TRANSIT (WEST COVINA, CA), the following provisions apply:

(2) Basis for Request for Change — Contractor-proposed changes under this subsection may include a
request for a Change Order on the basis of an extraordinary and

unanticipated increase in the cost of Materials or components used to manufacture or produce

the Vehicles, including an increase in cost due to a change in State or Federal law or regulations, that
arises after the date of this Agreement and that directly results in additional cost or time to perform
the Work. Foothill Transit is not obligated to agree to such a request for a Change Order, but agrees to
review, discuss, and consider any such request in good faith.

We recognize that our transit partners are managing tight budgets and procurement timelines.
New Flyer is enhancing our procedures to deliver estimates and updates regarding the
anticipated value of the tariffs during the pre-production and production phases. These
estimates are derived from projected material content, reflecting the highest publicly announced
tariffs to date, excluding duty drawbacks or exemptions.

The price adjustment, reflective of the actual tariff costs, will be computed upon line entry and
accompanied by auditable documentation for FOOTHILL TRANSIT (WEST COVINA, CA). This
amount will be determined through New Flyer SRCR (Sales Release Change Request) process
and will be provided at cost. Additionally, it will be distinctly labeled as a Tariff Charges in the
price adjustment.

This approach ensures that FOOTHILL TRANSIT (WEST COVINA, CA) is only paying for the
tariff costs directly tied to your build, at the time of build, rather than relying on estimates. Please
be assured that we will share as much clarity and documentation as commercially practicable.
We are also working diligently with our suppliers to ensure they are equally transparent and
accountable for the impacts they pass along to us.

Our priority remains clear: to be a trusted partner to your agency through open communication,
proactive problem-solving, and fair pricing. You will be hearing from our team to review the
details of your order and walk through these price changes within the next few weeks.

Thank you for your continued partnership and trust in New Flyer.

Sincerely,

Vi et o
Chris Stoddart Scott Halbesma
President VP, Customer Care

New Flyer and MCI New Flyer and MCI



—_w

Foothill Transit

October 24, 2025

To: Executive Board

Subject: Los Angeles Metro Transit Center Permits

Recommendation

Receive and file the Los Angeles Metro (LA Metro) Transit Center Permits
Report.

Analysis

Foothill Transit currently operates 35 bus lines throughout the San Gabriel &
Pomona Valls. The agency’s major hubs are located at the El Monte Station,
Pomona Transit Center, Puente Hills Mall, West Covina and California Streets,
and the Montclair Transit Center. Most of the locations are operated by either
the respective cities, LA County, Cal Trans, or LA Metro. Foothill Transit
currently does not pay to service the locations.

Foothill Transit provides service to two LA Metro owned transit centers, El
Monte Station, the newly opened Pomona A-Line Station, and utilizes
Terminal 28 in downtown Los Angeles as a layover for the Silver Streak on
weekends and after hours when Foothill Transit’s downtown Los Angeles
layover is closed

LA Metro operates and maintains El Monte Station. Foothill Transit operates a
Transit Store, which sells passes and provides routing information to Foothill
and LA Metro customers, and operates 10 lines through this location.

The real estate department at LA Metro has contacted Foothill Transit,
informing the agency that it now requires permits and fees to operate at LA
Metro operated transit centers or terminals. The fee will be $1,000 per site per
month.

If the fees are implemented, Foothill Transit will have to pay $12,000 a year
for each of the three sites for a total of $36,000 a year.

Foothill Transit is still in the process of completing the permit applications and
will bring more information to the Board as further progress is made.

Agenda Item No. 11



Foothill Transit
Executive Board Meeting - 10/24/2025
LA Metro Transit Center Permits Report
Page 2

Fiscal Impact

The annual cost of the LA Metro Permits was not been programmed into the
FY 25-26 Operating Budget, but there are sufficient funds in the budget to
pay for the permits.

Sincerely,
Joseph Raquel Doran J. Barnes
Director of Planning and IT Chief Executive Officer

Joyce Rooney
Director of Finance

Agenda Item No. 11



	Agenda: October 24, 2025 Executive Board Meeting
	Minutes: August 29, 2025 Executive Board Meeting
	Item 7: October 2025 Procurement Monthly Report
	Item 8: Resolution Adopting Executive Board and Governing Board Meeting Schedule for 2026
	Item 9: Amendment to Chief Executive Officer's Employment Agreement
	Item 10: U.S. Tariff Impacts and Bus Purchase Funding Updates
	Item 11: Los Angeles Metro Transit Center Permits

